
Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor Thomas J. Pavlik  

Clerk 
Berwyn City Council 

 
 

Regular Meeting 
December 10, 2013 

 

Agenda 

 

 

 

The Mayor and City Council welcome you.  Please note:  comments are permitted only during Open Forum and only for 
items not already on the agenda.  When called upon by the Mayor, kindly state your name and address for the record.  
Thank you for your participation. 

 PAGE 

A. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence 
 

 

B. Open Forum 
 

 

C. Approval of Minutes  
 1. November 26, 2013 Regular Council and Committee of the Whole 

 
3 

D. Bid Openings 
 

 

E. Berwyn Development Corporation – Berwyn Township/Health District 
1. Ordinance re Disposition of Real Estate 6550 Ogden 
2. Deck the Depot 12/14/13 Request to Close Grove Ave from Windsor to 34th 

 

 
9 

34 

F. Reports from the Mayor  

G. Reports from the Clerk 
1. Approval of Closed Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes 10/22 and 11/12/13 

 

 
35 

H. Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

 

I. Reports from Aldermen, Committees and Boards 
1. Chapman:  Budget Committee Report 
2. Polashek:  Recreation Committee Report 
3. Laureto:  FitzGerald’s Christmas Concert 12/13/13 
4. BPHC:  Nominate 6945 Riverside Drive, Dvorak House, as Berwyn Historic Landmark 

 

 
36 
38 
39 
40 

J. Staff Reports 
1. City Attorney:  Case No. 440-2013-04021 
2. Ruth Volbre:  Recommendation to Award Bid for Cleaning Supplies 
3. Finance: 2013 Tax Levy Ordinance 
4. Finance:  Water Rate Increase Ordinance 
5. Finance:  Request Approval for Supplemental Appropriations Ordinances (2) 

An Ordinance to Transfer Previously Appropriated Funds 
An Ordinance Supplementing and Amending the 2013 Appropriation Ordinance 
 

 

 
81 
82 
83 
87 
90 
91 
99 

12.10.13 Council Packet page1



Berwyn City Council 
Regular Meeting – December 10, 2013 

Agenda 
 

 

K. Consent Agenda  

 1. Payables 12/10/13 $     1,261,311.16 109 
 2. Payroll 12/04/13 $        976,555.60 115 
 3. Handicap Parking #860 2532 Wesley Approve 116 
 4. Handicap Parking #864 6846 32nd St Approve 123 
 5. Handicap Parking #866 3619 Euclid Approve 126 
 6.  Building and Local Improvements November 2013 132 
 7. Collections and Business Licenses November 2013 140 
 8. New Life Community Church Christmas Program 12/15/13 

 
145 

L. Adjournment  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with disabilities Act, any individual in the need of a reasonable 

accommodation in order to participate in or benefit from attendance at a City of Berwyn public meeting should contact  
City Clerk Thomas J. Pavlik at (708) 788-2660 as early in advance as possible. 

12.10.13 Council Packet page2



ROBERT J. LOVERO      THOMAS J. PAVLIK 

       MAYOR             CITY CLERK 
MINUTES 

BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 
NOVEMBER 26, 2013 

1 
 

 

1. The regular meeting of the Berwyn City Council was called to order by Mayor 
Lovero at 8:00 p.m. Upon the call of the roll, the following responded 

present: Chapman, Boyajian, Paul, Fejt, Santoy, Polashek, Avila and 
Laureto.   

 
2. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited and a moment of silence was given for 

all our servicemen and women, and the men and women protecting our 

safety on the streets in Berwyn. 
 

3. The Open Forum portion of the meeting was announced. Ald. Polashek 
announced an informational session to be held on December 9, 2013 at 6:30 

p.m. at the Berwyn Library to answer questions about affordable health 
care. The Mayor read a letter received regarding the response time of the 

Fire Department to Harvey Place Condos for a Carbon Monoxide call and 

commended their actions. 
 

4. Minutes of the Berwyn City Council regular meeting and Committee of the 
Whole held November 12, 2013, were submitted. Thereafter, Avila made a 

motion, seconded by Boyajian, to concur and approve as submitted. The 
motion carried by a voice vote. 

 
5. The Mayor submitted a Proclamation congratulating Nathan Aaron Nelson on 

achieving the highest level of Eagle Scouts. Thereafter, Chapman made a 

motion, seconded by Boyajian, to adopt the Proclamation as presented. The 
motion carried by a voice vote. Thereafter, the Mayor presented the 

Proclamation to Nathan Aaron Nelson. 
 

6. The Mayor submitted a Proclamation congratulating Rafael Alejandro Ruiz on 
achieving the highest level of Eagle Scouts. Thereafter, Chapman made a 

motion, seconded by Avila, to concur and adopt the Proclamation as 
presented. The motion carried by a voice vote. Thereafter, the Mayor 

presented the Proclamation to Rafael Alejandro Ruiz. 

 
7. The Mayor submitted a Proclamation congratulating Sean Kampe on 

achieving the highest level of Eagle Scouts. Thereafter, Chapman made a 
motion, seconded by Boyajian, to concur and adopt the Proclamation as 

presented. The motion carried by a voice vote. Thereafter, the Mayor 
presented the Proclamation to Sean Kampe.  

12.10.13 Council Packet page3



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
NOVEMBER 26, 2013 

 

2 

 

8. The Mayor submitted a Proclamation congratulating Julian Garcia and Nathan 

Rodriguez on their keen observation skills and response that helped an 

individual out of a serious situation. Thereafter, Boyajian made a motion, 
seconded by Fejt, to concur and adopt the Proclamation as presented. The 

motion carried by a voice vote. Thereafter, the Mayor presented the 
Proclamation to Julian Garcia and Nathan Rodriguez. 

 

9. Chapman made a motion, seconded by Boyajian, to suspend the rules and 

bring forward item #J-1. The motion carried by a voice vote. J-1 is a 
communication from Police Chief Ritz regarding the introduction and 

swearing in of Probationary Police Officer Ross Failla. Thereafter, Avila made 

a motion, seconded by Boyajian, to concur and approve as submitted. The 
motion carried by a voice vote.  Thereafter, Clerk Pavlik swore in the 

Probationary Officer. 
 

10. The Clerk submitted a communication regarding the 2014 Holiday and 
Meeting Schedule. Thereafter, Chapman made a motion, seconded by 

Boyajian, to concur and approved as submitted. The motion carried by a 

voice vote. 
 

11. The Budget Committee submitted a communication regarding the Budget 
Hearing for the 2014 budget process with the Police and Fire Departments. 

Thereafter, Chapman made a motion, seconded, by Boyajian, to accept as 
informational. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

 

12. The Budget Committee submitted a communication regarding the Budget 
Hearing for the 2014 budget process with Public Works. Thereafter, 

Chapman made a motion, seconded, by Boyajian, to accept as informational. 
The motion carried by a voice vote. 

 

13. Alderman Paul submitted a communication regarding referral item J-6, 
Review of New Vehicle Sticker Policy and Pricing Effective June 2014. 

Thereafter, Paul made a motion, seconded by Boyajian, to accept as 
informational. The motion carried by a voice vote.  

 

14. Alderman Fejt submitted a communication regarding Land Acquisition in the 

4th ward. He recommended it be referred to the Building, Zoning, and 

Planning Committee for follow up investigation. Fejt made a motion, 
seconded by Boyajian, to accept as informational. The motion carried by a 

voice vote. 
 

12.10.13 Council Packet page4



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
NOVEMBER 26, 2013 

 

3 

15. Police Commander O’Halloran submitted a communication regarding an 
Emergency Notification System. The Mayor recognized Commander 

O’Halloran who reviewed same. Thereafter, Chapman made a motion, 
seconded by Laureto, to concur, waive the bid process, and approve as 

submitted for payment. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote.   
 

16. Police Chief James Ritz submitted a communication regarding the Reciprocal 
Reporting System Agreement.  Thereafter, Avila made a motion, seconded 

by Laureto, to concur, approve as submitted and authorize corporate 
authorities to affix their signatures thereto. The motion carried by a 

unanimous roll call vote. 

 

17. The City Attorney submitted a communication and ordinance entitled: 

 
AN ORDINANCE DESIGNATING THE BERWYN BUNGALOW AT 2532 

WESLEY AVENUE,  AS A HISTORIC LANDMARK, PURSUANT TO THE 

REQUIREMENTS OF CHAPTER 1820 OF THE BERWYN CITY CODE. 

Thereafter, Paul made a motion, seconded by Boyajian to concur and adopt 

the ordinance and authorize the corporate authorities to affix their 
signatures thereto. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

18. The City Attorney submitted a communication regarding an 
Intergovernmental Agreement between the City of Berwyn and the South 

Berwyn School District 100 regarding the Transfer of Ownership of Security 

System, Cameras and Equipment. Thereafter, Avila made a motion, 
seconded by Chapman, to concur and approve as submitted and authorize 

the corporate authorities to affix their signatures thereto. The motion carried 
by a unanimous roll call vote. 

 

19. The Finance Director submitted a communication regarding the Surplus 

Property Repurposing. Thereafter, Chapman made a motion, seconded by 

Boyajian to accept the matter as informational. The motion carried by a 
voice vote.  

 
20. The Public Works Director Robert Schiller submitted a communication 

regarding the Awarding of the Sinclair and 34th Street Alley Replacement. 
Thereafter, Boyajian made a motion, seconded by Paul, to concur and 

approve as submitted by awarding the contract to J. Nardulli Concrete, Inc. 
for an amount not to exceed $136,400.00. The motion carried by a 

unanimous roll call vote.  
 

21. The Public Works Director submitted a communication regarding Awarding a 
Contract for Field Investigation and Preliminary Engineering for the Design 

12.10.13 Council Packet page5



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
NOVEMBER 26, 2013 

 

4 

and Installation of an Emergency Generator at the 19th Street Pumping 
Station. The Mayor recognized Robert Schiller who reviewed same. 

Thereafter, Boyajian made a motion, seconded by Polashek, to concur and 
approve as submitted for an amount not to exceed $20,000. The motion 

carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 
 

22. The consent agenda, items K-1 through K-5, were submitted: 
 

K-1 Payroll 

 

11/20/13      $ 1,073,305.18 
K-2 Payables 11/26/13     $ 946,779.61 

K-3 Handicap Parking Sign #857 1908 S. Wesley Approve 
K-4 CHANA-Solicitation Extension to April 2014 

K-5 Handicap Parking Sign #856 2631 Ridgeland Approve 
 

Thereafter, Avila made a motion, seconded by Paul, to concur and    
approve by omnibus vote designation. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

 

23. Alderman Chapman called a Budget Committee meeting for 4:00, Monday 
December 2, 2013 and a Budget Committee meeting for 4 p.m. Wednesday  

December 11, 2013. 
 

24. Alderman Polashek announced a Recreation Committee meeting, as 
previously called, December 4, 2013 at 6:30 pm.  

 

25. There being no further business to come before the meeting, same was after 

a motion by Laureto, seconded by Avila, to adjourn at the hour of 8:35 p.m. 

The motion carried by a voice vote. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

 

 
Thomas J. Pavlik, CMC 

City Clerk 

12.10.13 Council Packet page6



MINUTES 
BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
November 26, 2013 

  

1 
 

 
1. Mayor Lovero called the Committee of the Whole to order at 6:04 p.m.; upon 

the call of the roll the following responded present: Chapman, Boyajian, Paul 
Fejt, Polashek, Santoy and Avila. Absent: Laureto. Thereafter, Avila made a 

motion, seconded by Boyajian, to excuse Alderman Laureto. The motion 
carried. 

        
2. Property Tax Levy Presentation: The Mayor recognized Finance Director David 

Jelonek and Assistant Finance Director Rasheed Jones, who presented the 
2013 Tax levy Ordinance (to be collected in fiscal year 2014,) reviewed same 

and presented a Power Point presentation.  
 

       Note: Alderman Laureto present at 6:08 p.m.  
 

       Jelonek reviewed the 2013 revenues, the highlights of 2013, which included 

real estate transfers up 17%, vehicle stickers exceeding1%, local 
improvement permits up over 9%, cell tower rental up 16% and red light 

photo enforcement up by 8%. Jelonek reviewed the achievements in 2013 
which included Standards and Poor’s rating increase to “A” and reigning in 

the unfunded accrued actuarial liability for Police and fire Pension funds. 
Jelonek reviewed the structural imbalance noting the ending fund balance in 

2004 was 8.6 million, dropping by 8.45 million in four years to an all time low 
of $148,000 in 2008, with a General Fund balance as of October 2013 at 9.1 

million. Jelonek also reviewed deficit spending reduction and the tax impact 
of alternative to pension funding. The aggregate levy increase is only 0.6% 

and with the additional debt service funding, which includes the unfunded 
pension liabilities, the combined impact on the taxpayers is approximately 

3.2%. The Mayor and council thanked the finance department for their hard 
work on the levy and preparations for the 2014 budget, noting the Levy 

Ordinance will be on the December 10, 2013 agenda for adoption.   

 
3.    There being no further business for the Open Committee of the Whole, the 

Mayor asked for a motion to go into closed session for Pending Litigation, 
contract negotiations, land acquisition and review of closed minutes. 

Thereafter, Polashek made a motion, seconded by Chapman, to close the 
Committee of the Whole at 6:31 p.m. The motion carried. 

 
4.    A motion was made in closed session to re-open the Committee of the Whole 

by Santoy, seconded by Avila, at 7:40 p.m. The motion carried.   
         

 

12.10.13 Council Packet page7



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
November 26, 2013 

2 
 

 

5. A motion was made by Boyajian, seconded by Polashek, to adjourn the 
Committee of the Whole at 7:40 p.m. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

 
 

 
            Respectfully submitted, 

 
 

 
Thomas J. Pavlik, CMC 

City Clerk 

12.10.13 Council Packet page8



12.10.13 Council Packet page9



12.10.13 Council Packet page10



12.10.13 Council Packet page11



12.10.13 Council Packet page12



12.10.13 Council Packet page13



12.10.13 Council Packet page14



12.10.13 Council Packet page15



12.10.13 Council Packet page16



12.10.13 Council Packet page17



12.10.13 Council Packet page18



12.10.13 Council Packet page19



12.10.13 Council Packet page20



12.10.13 Council Packet page21



12.10.13 Council Packet page22



12.10.13 Council Packet page23



12.10.13 Council Packet page24



12.10.13 Council Packet page25



12.10.13 Council Packet page26



12.10.13 Council Packet page27



12.10.13 Council Packet page28



12.10.13 Council Packet page29



12.10.13 Council Packet page30



12.10.13 Council Packet page31



12.10.13 Council Packet page32



12.10.13 Council Packet page33



12.10.13 Council Packet page34



12.10.13 Council Packet page35



12.10.13 Council Packet page36



12.10.13 Council Packet page37



12.10.13 Council Packet page38



12.10.13 Council Packet page39



12.10.13 Council Packet page40



12.10.13 Council Packet page41



12.10.13 Council Packet page42



12.10.13 Council Packet page43



12.10.13 Council Packet page44



12.10.13 Council Packet page45



12.10.13 Council Packet page46



12.10.13 Council Packet page47



12.10.13 Council Packet page48



12.10.13 Council Packet page49



12.10.13 Council Packet page50



12.10.13 Council Packet page51



12.10.13 Council Packet page52



12.10.13 Council Packet page53



12.10.13 Council Packet page54



12.10.13 Council Packet page55



12.10.13 Council Packet page56



12.10.13 Council Packet page57



12.10.13 Council Packet page58



12.10.13 Council Packet page59



12.10.13 Council Packet page60



12.10.13 Council Packet page61



12.10.13 Council Packet page62



12.10.13 Council Packet page63



12.10.13 Council Packet page64



12.10.13 Council Packet page65



12.10.13 Council Packet page66



12.10.13 Council Packet page67



12.10.13 Council Packet page68



12.10.13 Council Packet page69



12.10.13 Council Packet page70



12.10.13 Council Packet page71



12.10.13 Council Packet page72



12.10.13 Council Packet page73



12.10.13 Council Packet page74



12.10.13 Council Packet page75



12.10.13 Council Packet page76



12.10.13 Council Packet page77



12.10.13 Council Packet page78



12.10.13 Council Packet page79



12.10.13 Council Packet page80



12.10.13 Council Packet page81



12.10.13 Council Packet page82



12.10.13 Council Packet page83



12.10.13 Council Packet page84



12.10.13 Council Packet page85



12.10.13 Council Packet page86



12.10.13 Council Packet page87



12.10.13 Council Packet page88



12.10.13 Council Packet page89



12.10.13 Council Packet page90



12.10.13 Council Packet page91



12.10.13 Council Packet page92



12.10.13 Council Packet page93



12.10.13 Council Packet page94



12.10.13 Council Packet page95



12.10.13 Council Packet page96



12.10.13 Council Packet page97



12.10.13 Council Packet page98



12.10.13 Council Packet page99



12.10.13 Council Packet page100



12.10.13 Council Packet page101



12.10.13 Council Packet page102



12.10.13 Council Packet page103



12.10.13 Council Packet page104



12.10.13 Council Packet page105



12.10.13 Council Packet page106



12.10.13 Council Packet page107



12.10.13 Council Packet page108



12.10.13 Council Packet page109



12.10.13 Council Packet page110



12.10.13 Council Packet page111



12.10.13 Council Packet page112



12.10.13 Council Packet page113



12.10.13 Council Packet page114



December 5, 2013

Mayor Robert J. Lovero
Members of the City Council
City of Berwyn

SUBJECT:  Payroll December 4, 2013

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The current payroll has been prepared for review by the finance department and is ready for approval at
the December 10, 2013 meeting.

Payroll: December 4, 2013 in the amount of  $976,555.60.

Respectfully Submitted,

Nona N. Chapman
Budget Committee Chairman

12.10.13 Council Packet page115



12.10.13 Council Packet page116



12.10.13 Council Packet page117



12.10.13 Council Packet page118



12.10.13 Council Packet page119



12.10.13 Council Packet page120



12.10.13 Council Packet page121



12.10.13 Council Packet page122



12.10.13 Council Packet page123



12.10.13 Council Packet page124



12.10.13 Council Packet page125



12.10.13 Council Packet page126



12.10.13 Council Packet page127



12.10.13 Council Packet page128



12.10.13 Council Packet page129



12.10.13 Council Packet page130



12.10.13 Council Packet page131



12.10.13 Council Packet page132



12.10.13 Council Packet page133



12.10.13 Council Packet page134



12.10.13 Council Packet page135



12.10.13 Council Packet page136



12.10.13 Council Packet page137



12.10.13 Council Packet page138



12.10.13 Council Packet page139



12.10.13 Council Packet page140



12.10.13 Council Packet page141



12.10.13 Council Packet page142



12.10.13 Council Packet page143



12.10.13 Council Packet page144



December 2, 2013 
  
To: The City of Berwyn 

  
I’m the event coordinator for New Life Community Church and we are performing an oldie, but , goody 

classic performance called “A Berwyn’s Christmas Carol” Written and Performed by our very own Church 

Members as well as the Pastor and Pastor’s wife. This is a Community Event and thought it would be great 

to have none other than the City of Berwyn’s Support by having your presence at our performance. Our 

event will be held on Sunday December, 15, 2013 @ 6pm. Doors open at 5pm. $5.00 per person, children 10 

and under are free. Tickets purchased by Friday December 13, 2013 will be $4.00 and can be purchased at 

the Church.  

  

We would be so appreciative of your support. We are more than just a Church, we are a family! New Life 

Community Church is a non-denominational Christian Church. We currently meet at 16 campuses in and 

around the Chicagoland area. We are passionate about helping people transformed through their ability to 

manage their decision making skills and reconnect with God and seeing lives changed. 

  

We appreciate you and your organization support in this effort, as we help our community residents 

become aware of tools in their community that can benefit them and their family. 

  

If you have any question or desire any additional information please feel free to contact me. I can be 

reached at 708/262-6280. May Blessings continue to flow upon you, your organization and all that is 

yours.   

  

Sincerely,  

Mariaelena Jimenez 

Event Coordinator/Community Liaison 
1900 So. Oak Park Ave.  
Berwyn, Illinois 60402                                                                                        
Church: 708-572-6490 
Email:mj3brats@yahoo.com 
Website: www.newlifechicago.org  
  

Pastor Abiathar Carroll 
abiatharc@newlifechicago.org 

Churches Hours  
Tues, Thurs & Fri 9am – 9pm 

Sunday 11am 2pm - Service starts @ 11:30am 

12.10.13 Council Packet page145

http://www.newlifechicago.org/
mailto:abiatharc@newlifechicago.org

	Agenda 12.10.13
	Minutes 11.26.13
	Minutes Cow- 11-26-13
	BDC Disposition of Real Estate 6550 Ogden
	BDC Deck the Depot
	Clerk Closed Minutes
	Chapman Budget Committee Report
	Polashek Recreation
	FitzGerald's Christmas Concert 12.13.13
	BHPC 6945 Riverside
	Attorney
	Volbre Bid
	Finance 2013 Tax Levy
	Finance Water Rate Incr
	FINANCE (2) suppl ord re 2013 appropriations
	Payables 12.10.13
	Payroll 12-4-13
	Handicap Parking 860 re 2532 Wesley
	Handicap Parking 864 re 6846 32nd St
	Handicap Parking 866 re 3619 Euclid
	Building & Local Improvements November 2013
	Business Licenses November 2013
	New Life Community Church Christmas Program 12.15.13



